



# Kestrel Heights Public Charter School

## **Minutes**

## September Board Meeting

#### **Date and Time**

Tuesday September 10, 2024 at 6:30 PM

#### Location

Join Zoom Meeting

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89228721593?pwd=MGx0MU43NUQ3czQxVmlYdW5abGRDQT09

Meeting ID: 892 2872 1593

Passcode: KHCS

## **Directors Present**

A. Davis (remote), A. Hernandez (remote), D. Patterson (remote), D. Powe (remote), D. Wimberly (remote), S. Goram (remote), S. McGarrah (remote)

## **Directors Absent**

None

## **Ex Officio Members Present**

T. Jackson (remote)

## **Non Voting Members Present**

T. Jackson (remote)

## **Guests Present**

A. Touchette (remote), Christina Sickinger (remote), Jacques Nyemb (remote), KiYana Watts (remote), Kimanthi Thompson (remote), S Watts (remote), S. Vargas (remote), T. McFadden (remote)

## I. Opening Items

## A. Call the Meeting to Order

A. Davis called a meeting of the board of directors of Kestrel Heights Public Charter School to order on Tuesday Sep 10, 2024 at 6:31 PM.

## **B.** Public Comment Submission

Ms. Davis instructed participants to use the Zoom meeting chat to submit public comments.

## C. Record Attendance and Guests

## D. Approve August Meeting Minutes

- D. Wimberly made a motion to approve the minutes from August Board Meeting on 08-13-24.
- S. McGarrah seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

#### E. Public Comment

There was no public comment.

## II. Key Agenda Items & Presentations

## A. Enrollment Report

Ms. Vargas shared the enrollment report. Kestrel currently has 418 scholars enrolled and has 158 open seats. 45 returning scholars from 2023-24 withdrew. Bloomwell marketing's campaign reached 85,000 families, and they have started a new add campaign.

The Board talked about the NC state private school vouchers and about home schooling. This is the first school year start since the NC General Assembly significantly increased funding and changed the rules for the vouchers.

## **B.** Facilities Update

Mr. Thompson shared the facilities update/committee report. There have been many repairs and facilities updates completed. Rooftop units #6 and #8 have been repaired. The Duke Energy light study should happen again within the next two weeks. Mr. Thompson shared that he and Mrs. Jackson held a Zoom call with Duke Energy to resolve those issues.

Mrs. Jackson also shared that the new playground paperwork has been completed, and the Gaga pit construction planning is underway. Lastly, Mr. Thompson and Mrs. McGarrah met with vendors to repair the recreation areas and address drainage issues around the school.

## C. Kestrel Culture Report

Mr. McFadden shared the school culture report, including a plan for staff/faculty and students. This year, Kestrel is using an app called Slack, which allows interpersonal communication between faculty that is all in one place and can cut down on multiple distractions in the classroom (e.g., announcements, walkies, etc). Educator's Handbook is another tool that Kestrel is using this year that links with PowerSchool and allows Kestrel to keep data on students in one place, including referrals, incident reports, etc. This tool also allows the letters and other communications to be shared easily with parents through Class Dojo.

#### III. Curriculum & Assessment

## A. School Performance Update

Mr. Touchette shared the Kestrel School Performance Update. In the 2022-23 school year, Kestrel was a D school, with F grades in some areas. In the 2023-24 school year, Kestrel is moving to a C school with significant increases across the board in math and reading and by student demographics. Kestrel has made up pandemic losses and is performing above 2019 performance. Mr. Touchette indicated that the growth is not the end, and Kestrel has plans in place to continue our performance improvement.

Mr. Patterson asked a question about whether the data would show how students that have stayed at Kestrel have performed compared to those students that have left Kestrel. Mr. Touchette said that he could look at that data, but he does not have it at his fingertips.

The reading scores for beginning of the grade are in, and Kestrel has a plan for working with our new readers as well as our other students. We have set growth and achievement goals for all scholars and have a plan to pursue that achievement. The Board discussed the grading system and how it worked. Mrs. Jackson and Mr. MacFadden both emphasized the importance of growth.

## **IV. Operational Reports**

## A. Executive Director's Report

Mrs. Jackson shared the Executive Director's report. Enrollment is down to 418 from projections of over 500 students. EpiCenter analytics are on track for submitting required documents to the State of NC with 100% on-time submission of accurate data. On the federal programs (including English Language Learners, Exceptional Children, and other

federal programs such as school nutrition), it is a busy time of year. Assessments for students has to be completed in the beginning of the year, and Mrs. Broadwell is working through these requirements. There are reports and requirements for the Exceptional Children program, including IEP meetings and beginning of the year requirements. Kestrel's School Nutrition program application has been completed and approved, and menus are completed. There are additional requirements for Title 1 and Title 2 federal programs are underway.

On the charter renewal, Kestrel has completed the final data collection and has received some feedback from the Charter School Renewal Board staff (some positive and some areas of growth). Kestrel is pursuing a 10-year renewal of our charter, and we will find out in October 2024 if we are eligible for that charter.

## **B. Monthly Budget Report**

Mrs. Jackson shared the monthly budget report. Kestrel Heights is one month into the new fiscal year, and we are on-track for the year. Two areas of expenditures - books and supplies and administrative services - are over for the year. However, both of these areas are front-loaded in most years. We are also waiting on federal and local funds that have not yet been released, but should be released soon.

Kestrel has 93.38 days cash on hand (with a bond requirement of 45 days cash on hand), and has a debt service coverage ratio of 1.13 (with a bond requirement of 1.05 that will increase to 1.15 at September 30, 2024).

## C. School Nutrition Program - Update

Mrs. Jackson shared that the School Nutrition Program application has been approved by the state. There will be a site visit on September 12, 2024. Vittles is our food provider, and the students have shared positive feedback on the menu this year.

## V. Committee Reports

## A. Community Engagement Sub-Committee

There was no update.

#### **B.** Committee Structure

Ms. Davis provided an update on the Board's plans to update our committee structure. The committee structure is:

- (1) Community Engagement and Development Adrienne Davis, Dwayne Patterson;
- (2) Governance Derek Powe;
- (3) Facilities Stephanie McGarrah;
- (4) AIG Review and Expansion Dalia Wimberly; and
- (5) Finance Serja Goram.

#### VI. Closed Session

#### A. Enter Closed Session

S. McGarrah made a motion to Enter into closed session per NCGS§ 143-318.11. (a) (1) To prevent the disclosure of information that is privileged or confidential pursuant to the law of this State or of the United States, or not considered a public record within the meaning of Chapter 132 of the General Statutes. (3) To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public body, which privilege is hereby acknowledged. General policy matters may not be discussed in a closed session and nothing herein shall be construed to permit a public body to close a meeting that otherwise would be open merely because an attorney employed or retained by the public body is a participant. The public body may consider and give instructions to an attorney concerning the handling or settlement of a claim, judicial action, mediation, arbitration, or administrative procedure. If the public body has approved or considered a settlement, other than a malpractice settlement by or on behalf of a hospital, in closed session, the terms of that settlement shall be reported to the public body and entered into its minutes as soon as possible within a reasonable time after the settlement is concluded. (6) To consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, conditions of appointment, or conditions of initial employment of an individual public officer or employee or prospective public officer or employee; or to hear or investigate a complaint, charge, or grievance by or against an individual public officer or employee. General personnel policy issues may not be considered in a closed session. A public body may not consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, appointment, or removal of a member of the public body or another body and may not consider or fill a vacancy among its own membership except in an open meeting. Final action making an appointment or discharge or removal by a public body having final authority for the appointment or discharge or removal shall be taken in an open meeting.

D. Wimberly seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

## **B.** Personnel Recommendations

## C. Board Meeting Agenda Items

## VII. Closing Items

## A. Report out from Closed Session

Mrs. McGarrah shared that the Board discussed candidates for open positions.

- S. McGarrah made a motion to Approve the hiring of the K-8 reading interventionist candidate as proposed by Mrs. Jackson.
- D. Wimberly seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

## **B.** Adjourn Meeting

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:20 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,

S. McGarrah